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Federal M ne Safety and Health Review Commi ssion (FMS. HRC)
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ngs
M NE SAFETY AND HEALTH
ADM NI STRATI ON ( MSHA) , Docket No. VINC 79-107-PM
PETI TI ONER A.C. No. 20-01047-05001
V. Docket No. VINC 79-191-PM

A.C. No. 20-01047-05002
SUPERI OR SAND & GRAVEL, |INC.,
RESPONDENT Superi or Wash Pl ant

DECI SI ON

Appear ances: Karl Overman, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor, U S. Departnment
of Labor, for Petitioner
Nor man McLean, Esq., Houghton, M chigan, for Respondent

Before: Administrative Law Judge M chel s

These proceedi ngs were brought pursuant to section 110(a) of
the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30 U S.C. 0O
820(a). The petitions for assessnent of civil penalty were filed
in VINC 79-107-PM on January 4, 1979, and in VINC 79-191-PM on
February 15, 1979. Tinely answers and a notion to consolidate
t he above proceedings were filed by the Respondent. A hearing
was held in Houghton, M chigan, on Septenber 27, 1979, at which
both parties were represented by counsel

VI NC 79-107-PM concerns five alleged violations. VINC
79-191- PM concerns six alleged violations. Evidence was received
as to each citation except for two that were settled and
deci sions thereon were rendered fromthe bench. These deci sions
as they appear in the record, with certain necessary corrections
or changes, are set forth below. In some instances it has been
necessary to slightly alter sentence structure for clarity. Al so
certain deletions and additions have been nade which are
general |y indi cated by appropriate markings.

VINC 79-107-PM
Citation Nos. 286419, 286420, 286821, 286825, issued Septenber 7, 1978

The following is the bench decision on the above citations
found at pages 94-103 of the transcript:

I am deciding the issue presented here in Docket
79-107-PMwith respect to four bermcitations
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numbered 286419; 286420; * * * 286821; and 286825. |n each of
these citations the inspector alleged a substantially sinmlar
practice or condition, except that each citation is related to a
particular part of the pit or mine. | will read into the record
only the allegation in the first citation which is 286419. "A
berm of m d-axle height of the |argest vehicle using the el evated
roadway | eading into the crusher area was not provided al ong the
right side for a distance of approximately 100 feet marking this
roadway. This roadway was bei ng used by heavy-duty nobile

equi prent. " This concerns a violation in each instance of 30 CFR
59.9-22, which states as follows: "Adequate bernms or guards shal
be provided on the outer banks of elevated roadways." Berns are

defined as follows: Bermneans "a pile or nound of materi al
capabl e of restraining a vehicle." * * *

As to this fact of violation, it seens to nme the

evi dence is reasonably clear that there were no berns
as defined by the regulation. A bermneans a pile or
mound of material capable of restraining a vehicle. |
believe it is quite clear fromthe inspector's
testinmony, and | rely on that, that there were sone
piles of dirt in at |east three |ocations.

O her testinmony indicates that due to apparent
washouts, the piles or mounds were not continuous. It
seens to be quite clear that that would create an
opportunity for a vehicle to | eave that roadway and

t hose nounds would fail to prevent it from going over

the side. | want to at this point nmake clear that at
present, | amonly tal king about the first three
citations. | amgoing to disregard for the nonent, the

last citation which is 286825 because | believe it is
inaslightly different category. Furthernore, as to
those first three citations it does appear that the
berms, where they did exist, were neither substanti al
enough nor high enough to prevent or to deflect a
vehicl e of the size being used on the roadways.

That is not to say that the evidence as to washouts or
other problens is not relevant and inportant and woul d
be taken into account in an assessnment of the
penalties. However, as to the first three citations,
based on the inspector's testinony, which | believed as
far as the nature of the berns or the nature of the
nmounds was concerned, was not seriously contested. |
find a violation of 56.9-22.

As to the last citation which is 286825, the
circunstance is slightly different. The evidence

i ndicates the road at the tine was being wi dened and

i nproved. There was a bermon the road, but part of

t he berm had been renoved in the course of repairing or
wi dening the road. The inspector's testinony is that
he did not know and had no reason to know that the road
was bei ng wi dened or inproved. There is
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some conflict about what he knew and what he said, however, |
don't know that | have to consider that in nmaking this decision.
It seens to ne on the basis of what we now know, which is that
the road was being repaired, that had the inspector known this he
m ght very well not have issued that citation.

I amnot finding fault with the inspector for issuing
[the citation], however, on the basis of this whole
record, we now know it was being repaired. It would be
an unusually harsh interpretation to require the road,
under those circunstances, to have a bermof the size
and type set forth. Accordingly, |I find that the |ast
bermcitation, 286825, is not a violation of the
standard as charged. * * *

My findings on the statutory criteria are as foll ows:
The size of the conpany. The testinony was that there
are [approximately] five enployees, and in ny judgnent

I think this is a small conpany. No evi dence was
presented as to history of past violations. There is a
substantial anount of evidence, however, as to the
conpany's safety record. They have had a good safety
record and appear to be safety conscious. | wll
certainly take that into account. There is no evidence
that the penalty to be assessed will restrict the
operator's ability to continue in business. There is
no evidence of any l|lack of good faith to achieve rapid
conpliance. So | assunme that good faith conpliance was
achi eved.

| have taken into account all of the follow ng various
circunmstances: * * * Only one man principally used
this road or these roads. The road was generally or
fairly wide and there is a relatively small chance [of]
an accident; yet, if a truck did get into trouble or
did go over these relatively high banks there could be
a serious accident. So | find [these violations were]
noderately serious in the circunstances mentioned.

On negligence, the |law requires proper bernms. The
evidence is clear that the conmpany continued to operate
wi thout full berns after sonme had been washed out. In
the circunstances, | find some degree of negligence for
the assessnent of these three citations.

The assessnent of ficer has assessed various anounts,
the [ owest being $20. | believe for the nost part the
assessnment officer has taken into account some of the
[mtigating] factors that were here nentioned. * * *
[1 assess] $20 for each of the three violations for a
total of $60. That will conplete nmy decision on the
ber ns.

The above bench decision i s AFFI RVED
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Citation No. 286822, issued Septenber 7, 1978

The following is the bench decision on the citation set

forth at

pages 128-131 of the transcript:

This is the last citation in this docket. It is
286822. The inspector cited inproper guarding for the
drive coupling on the portabl e generator plant.

* * * Ho alleged this to be a violation of 30 CFR
56.14-6. This standard reads as follows: "Except when
testing the machi nery, guards shall be securely in

pl ace while the machinery is being operated.”

The first question is the fact of the violation. The

i nspector testified and there seens to be no question
at all that the screen guard was in place, but not
bolted. The issue is whether it was securely in place.
There is also testinony that this screen i s heavy,

wei ghi ng sonething Iike 30 pounds. It would not be
easily noved. |If [the screen] were pushed, it would
sinmply push into the coupling machinery. Based on al
of the evidence on the probability of an accident, the
nature of the conditions which existed and so forth, it
seens to ne that this would be no nore than what m ght
be described as a technical violation, if it is a
violation at all.

| don't know whether this particular [aw requires
securing by bolting in every instance. In this case
and under these circunstances, and based on the
testinmony here | amgoing to give the benefit of the
doubt to the operator. [The screen] was standing on

| egs which were stuck into the floor. Fromthe
testinmony * * * it seens to me al nost inpossible, if
not inpossible, that that screen could be noved so that
sonmebody could come in and fall into the coupling. So,
for the purpose of this nmachine, it was securely in

pl ace. * * *

| find that there is no violation of [30 CFR 56. 14-6]
as charged in G tation 286822. Accordingly, the
citation * * * is hereby vacated, and there will be
no penalty assessed.

The above bench decision i s AFFI RVED

VI NC 79-191- PM

Citation Nos. 286417 and 286418, issued Septenber 7, 1978

The following is the bench decision on the above citations

found at

pages 158-163 of the transcript:

This involves Citations 286417 and 286418. |n 286417,
the inspector found as the condition or practice that
an automatic audi bl e warni ng devi ce was not provided on



a Mchigan 175 front-end | oader, serial 13AHG306. The
| oader was used to feed the rock crusher in the pit.
An observer to
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signal when it was safe to back up, was not present. |In 286418,
an audi bl e automati c warni ng device was not provided on the
Koering dunpster, D5711. The dunpster was used to haul material
fromthe crusher | oadout to a stockpile. An observer to signa
when it was safe to back up was not provided as set forth in 30
CFR 56.9-87. * * *

In both instances it is clear fromthe inspector's
testinmony, [upon which | rely] that there was no
automatic reverse warning device on the nmachines. * *
* The mandatory standard invol ved which is 56.9-87,
[requires] that heavy-duty nobile equi pnent shall be
provided with audi bl e automati c warni ng devi ces when

t he operator of such equi pment has an obstructed vi ew
to the rear. The equi pment shall have either an
automatic reverse signal al arm audi bl e above the
surroundi ng noi se |l evel of the machine or a signal man
to signal when it is safe to back up. In this

i nstance, the inspector testified, and there was no
contrary testinony, that the equi pment was heavy-duty
nmobi | e equi prment * * * and that there were no audible
war ni ng devices. That testinony is not contested.
Accordingly, I find that in each of the two instances,
violations of 56.9-87 occurred.

It is unnecessary to nake findings on the criteria as
to the history, size of the conpany, and ability to pay
since these have already been made in this record. It
appeared to ne fromthe testinony that the conpany did
use good faith efforts to achieve rapid conpliance. So
as far as the gravity is concerned, | think it is clear
fromthe testinony and | believe experience in this
area bears this out, that the | ack of audible warning
signals is a grave hazard. The nere fact that nen

m ght not al ways be behind the machines is not really
too rel evant because there is always that one rare

i nstance where sonebody woul d be in back of the machine
and becone gravely injured or die. | find that [these
are] grave violations.

Now, as the first citation, namely 286417, witnesses
for the Respondent testified that they had a
[corrective] device ordered and that when they received
and placed it on the machine, it failed to function
properly. It was taken off the machine with the object
of returning it [to the manufacturer]. | believe that
this is a mtigating circunmstance as far as the
negl i gence i s concerned. However, * * * somebody coul d
have been injured when the device was not on the
machi ne and | find sonme negligence [in 286417. In
Citation 286418 | find ordi nary negligence.]
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Taking into account the mtigating circunstances in 417, | wll
reduce that penalty by one-half which will nmake it $28. [In
Citation 286418, | believe the proposed penalty is appropriate
and | hereby assess $56 for it].

My bench deci sion is hereby AFFI RVED
Citation Nos. 286823 and 286824, issued Septenber 7, 1978

The following is the bench decision on the above citations
found at pages 206-213 of the transcript:

This part of the decision deals with two citations,
nunbers 286823 and 286824. The inspector charges the
follow ng: The stairway |eading into the parts and | ube
van in the pit was not provided with handrails in
violation of 30 CFR 56.11-27. In 824, the inspector
cited as a condition or practice the foll ow ng:

el evat ed wal kways on both sides of the Cedar Rapids
Wash Pl ant were not provided with handrails. The

wal kways are approximately 10 feet above the ground

I evel. That is charged as a violation of 30 CFR
56.11-27, a mandatory standard which [requires that]
adequat e crossovers, el evated wal kways, el evated ranps,
and stairways shall be of substantial construction
provided with handrails and mai ntai ned i n good
condition. \Were necessary, toeboards shall be

provi ded.

The first violation to [which] | address nyself is 823.
The testinony denonstrates clearly that there was a
stairway and that it had no handrails. There is sone
evidence to the effect that it is a relatively short
stairway and also that it was not used except
infrequently to obtain materials within the van.
Nevert hel ess, the inspector testified, and there is no
evidence to the contrary, that there was grease on the
stairway. It is the type of situation that could
provi de the background for an acci dent even though it
is arelatively small stairway. The nmen going in and
out could easily slip and fall and be seriously hurt.
* * *(FOOTNOTE 1)

The next citation is 286824. * * * So far as the
actual standard is concerned, it does, as | have
interpreted it here, require a handrail for obvious
safety reasons, so | therefore, find a violation in
286824.



~2111
The violation in both cases, [concerns] standard 56.11-27. There
bei ng no evidence to the contrary, | find abatenent in good faith
was rapidly achieved. The gravity, | think, has al ready been
referred to in part. There is a very good likelihood of injury
frommen stepping off or accidentally falling off such a wal kway
or stairway. Accordingly, |I find that it is a serious violation
I nsof ar as negligence is concerned, the testi nony denonstrates
di sgreenent as to an absolute need for such handrails in both of
t hese instances. The conpany honestly and in good faith
apparently did not believe they were needed. However, the
standard does require it and it is negligent not to conply with
the standard. So | find * * * a slight degree of ordinary
negl i gence.

It seenms to ne as far as assessnents are concerned, the
assessnment officer's penalties took into account the
factors | have been tal king about. These are not high
penalties. In the circunstances, | will assess those
penalties * * *.  For 286823 | assess the penalty of
$36 and for 286824 | assess the penalty of $34.

The above bench decision is hereby AFFI RVED
Citation No. 286826, issued Septenber 7, 1978

Citation No. 286826 alleges a violation of 30 CFR 56.14-1
whi ch requires that gears, sprockets, chains, drive, head, tai
and takeup pulleys; flywheels, couplings, shafts, sawblades, fan
inlets; and simlar exposed noving machi ne parts which may be
contacted by and cause injury to persons be guarded. The parties
have agreed to settle this citation because there is a factua
di spute as to whether the enpl oyees were actually exposed to the
hazard. The proposed assessnent is $66. The settlenent is $14.
Consi dering the circunstances, | approved this settlenent and
hereby incorporate it as part of ny decision

Citation No. 286400, issued Septenber 8, 1978

Citation No. 286400 alleges a violation of 30 CFR 56.5-20
whi ch sets forth perm ssible exposure to noise according to the
American National Standards Institute (ANSI). The parties have
agreed to settle for the proposed anpbunt, $26. | approved this
settl enent and hereby incorporate it as part of ny decision

A summary of the dispositions in this case are as foll ows:

Ctation Act i on/ Assessnent
286419 $ 20

286420 20

286821 20

286825 vacat ed

286822 vacat ed



~2112

286417 28

286418 56

286823 36

286824 34

286826 14

286400 26
Tot al $254
ORDER

IT 1S ORDERED t hat Respondent pay the penalties totaling
$254 within thirty (30) days of the date of this decision.

Franklin P. Mchels

Admi ni strative Law Judge
AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
FOOTNOTES START HERE
~FDOOTNOTE_ONE

1 The Respondent argued at the hearing that in abating the

violation it installed two handrails and that as a result the
door of the van could not be opened w thout renoving the rails.
The inspector testified that one handrail is sufficient (Tr.
176). This would permt the door to open. Accordingly, |I held
that only one rail was needed on the |ube van (Tr. 210).



